
 

1 
 

Committee Administrator: Carole Oliphant 
Tel: 01884 234209 

Email: coliphant@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

Mid Devon District Council 
 

Community Policy Development Group 
 

Tuesday, 21 September 2021 at 2.15 pm 
Exe Room, Phoenix House, Tiverton 

 
Next ordinary meeting 

Tuesday, 16 November 2021 at 2.15 pm 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  this meeting will take place at Phoenix House, but members of 
the Public and Press can and should attend via Zoom only. Please do not attend 
Phoenix House without prior agreement. The attached Protocol for Hybrid 
Meetings explains how this will work. 
 
Join Zoom Meeting  
https://zoom.us/j/98395435203?pwd=V2VLdzVtRGU1cjJ1SU43djFYYTBUZz09  
Meeting ID: 983 9543 5203  
Passcode: 342884  
One tap mobile  
08000315717,,98395435203#,,,,*342884# The United Kingdom Toll-free  
08002605801,,98395435203#,,,,*342884# The United Kingdom Toll-free  
Dial by your location  
        0 800 031 5717 The United Kingdom Toll-free  
        0 800 260 5801 The United Kingdom Toll-free  
        0 800 358 2817 The United Kingdom Toll-free  
Meeting ID: 983 9543 5203  
Passcode: 342884  
 
 

Membership 
 
Cllr Mrs E M Andrews  
Cllr Mrs C Collis  
Cllr W Burke  
Cllr L J Cruwys  
Cllr J M Downes  
Cllr B Holdman  
Cllr S Pugh  
Cllr Mrs E J Slade  
Cllr Mrs M E Squires 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://zoom.us/j/98395435203?pwd=V2VLdzVtRGU1cjJ1SU43djFYYTBUZz09


 

2 
 

Committee Administrator: Carole Oliphant 
Tel: 01884 234209 

Email: coliphant@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

A G E N D A 
 
Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any 
discussion which may take place 
 
1   Apologies and Substitute Members   

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of 
substitute Members (if any). 
 

2   Hybrid Meetings Protocol  (Pages 5 - 12) 
Members to note the Hybrid Meetings protocol. 
 

3   Declarations of Interest under the Code of Conduct   
Councillors are reminded of the requirement to declare any interest, 
including the type of interest, and reason for that interest, either at this 
stage of the meeting or as soon as they become aware of that interest. 
 

4   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 13 - 16) 
Members to consider whether to approve the Minutes of the last meeting 
as a correct record. 
 

5   Public Question Time   
To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto. 
 
Note: A maximum of 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 
 

6   Chairmans Announcements   
To receive any announcements that the Chairman may wish to make. 
 

7   Strategic Grants Review  (Pages 17 - 20) 
Group to consider the formation of a Grants Working Group for the 
Strategic Grants 2022-2023 to make recommendations on the level of 
funding and length of awards 
 

8   Consultation - DCC Domestic Abuse Support Safe Accommodation 
Strategy  (Pages 21 - 48) 
Group to receive the draft DCC Strategy for Domestic Abuse Support in 
Safe Accommodation attached in Annex 1 and provide any consultation 
responses it sees fit through the DCC consultation exercise. 
 

9   Anti Social Behaviour Proposal for Work Plan  (Pages 49 - 50) 
Members to receive a proposal form for Anti Social Behaviour to be 
added to the work plan 
 

10   Work Plan  (Pages 51 - 56) 
To receive the current work plan for the Community PDG. 
 
Members to agree and discuss additional items that they would like 
added to the work plan. 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

3 
 

Committee Administrator: Carole Oliphant 
Tel: 01884 234209 

Email: coliphant@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Stephen Walford 
Chief Executive 

Monday, 13 September 2021 
 

 
Covid-19 and meetings  
 
From 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in 
person. However, the Council is also required to follow government guidance 
about safety during the pandemic. The Council will enable all people to continue 
to participate in meetings via Zoom.  
 
You are strongly encouraged to participate via Zoom to keep everyone safe - 
there is limited capacity in meeting rooms if safety requirements are to be met. 
There are restrictions and conditions which apply to those in the building and 
the use of the building. You must not attend a meeting at Phoenix House 
without complying with the requirements in the new protocol for meetings. You 
must follow any directions you are given.  
 
Please read the new meeting protocol which is available here: Hybrid Protocol - 
September 2021.pdf (middevon.gov.uk) 
 
If you want to ask a question or speak, email your full name to 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk by no later than 4pm on the day before the 
meeting. This will ensure that your name is on the list to speak and will help us 
ensure that you are not missed – as you can imagine, it is easier to see and 
manage public speaking when everyone is physically present in the same room. 
Notification in this way will ensure the meeting runs as smoothly as possible. 
 
If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large 
print) please contact Carole Oliphant on: 
E-Mail: coliphant@middevon.gov.uk 
 
Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms. 
 
1.  
 
 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s22797/Hybrid%20Protocol%20-%20September%202021.pdf
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s22797/Hybrid%20Protocol%20-%20September%202021.pdf
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:coliphant@middevon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1  

Mid Devon District Council – Hybrid Meeting Protocol 
 

1. Introduction 
 

Remote meetings via Zoom have been used during the Covid-19 pandemic in 
accordance with the temporary legislation. That legislation ceases to apply from 
7 May 2021. However, Covid-19 legislation and guidance continues in place and 
this places specific requirements for meetings in relation to health and safety, risk 
assessments and related matters. 

 
The Council has therefore put in place temporary arrangements which will enable 
meetings to take place in compliance with legislation, whilst providing alternative 
participation opportunities to maintain a Covid-19 safe environment. All are asked 
to remember that the Council’s offices at Phoenix House are not just meeting 
rooms – they are the place of employment for many and there are implications 
beyond just how the meetings are held. 

 
The arrangements set out in this Protocol will apply to meetings from 7 May 2021 
until further notice. At the date of this Protocol, it is expected that arrangements 
may change later this year – because the Government may change the law, the 
Covid- 19 pandemic may have further receded and/or the Council makes 
alternative arrangements. 

 
2. Hybrid arrangements – how will they work? 

 

(a) Members (councillors) entitled to vote 
 

All Members entitled to vote in a meeting must be present in the same room – if 
they are to be classed as ‘present’ (count towards the quorum) and to cast a vote. 
If a Member entitled to vote is not in the room, they may still participate via Zoom 
(see below), but they will not be present (quorum) nor be able to vote. 

 
(b) Other Members, Officers and the Public 

 
The Council will use Zoom to enable all other Members, officers and the Public to 
attend and participate in meetings safely. Zoom will be enabled in all public 
meetings. Those attending the meeting physically will be able to see and hear 
Zoom participants via the existing large TV/monitor screens in the meeting rooms. 

The primary objective is to ensure that meetings can continue as safely as possible 
and that the rights of Members and the Public are not diminished simply because 
the meeting is being held through a mix of online and face-to-face means. The 
Chairman will retain control and discretion over the conduct of the meeting and the 
Zoom host will provide administrative support to facilitate the meeting. 
 

Please note that, exceptionally, meeting arrangements may change – in response 
to legislation, court decisions, or risk. This may include a meeting being 
postponed, or the hybrid arrangements changing or being withdrawn. We ask that 
you check the arrangements in advance of joining or attending the meeting. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2  

Those on Zoom will be able to hear Members in the room and see them – although 
this will be a whole room view and there will be no zooming in on individual 
members. It is essential therefore those Members present in the room use the 
microphones at all times and identify themselves before speaking. 

 
There will be some Officers in the room – the Committee Administrator, the Zoom 
host and, at times, an additional support officer. There may also be a meeting room 
host to manage the safety of the meeting. All other Officers should use Zoom, 
unless they are specifically invited into the room by the Chairman of the meeting. 

 
3. Zoom 

 
Zoom is the system the Council will be using for those attending Hybrid meetings 
remotely. It has functionality for audio, video, and screen sharing and you do not 
need to be a member of the Council or have a Zoom account to join a Zoom 
meeting. 

 
4. Access to documents 

 
Member Services will publish the agenda and reports for committee meetings on 
the Council’s website in line with usual practice. Paper copies of agendas will only 
be made available to those who have previously requested this and also the Chair 
of a meeting. 

 
If any other Member wishes to have a paper copy, they must notify Member 
Services before the agenda is published, so they can arrange to post directly – it 
may take longer to organise printing, so as much notice as possible is appreciated. 

 
The Public should continue to access agendas via the Council’s website - and are 
encouraged to do so even after the offices at Phoenix House are fully open again. 

 
5. Setting up the Meeting for Zoom attendance 

 

This will be done by Member Services. They will send a meeting request via 
Outlook which will appear in Members’ Outlook calendar. Members and Officers 
will receive a URL link to click on to join the meeting. The Public will use the Zoom 
details on the front of the agenda. The telephone dial-in via Zoom will also be 
available. 

 
6. Public Access and Participation 

 
(a) Public Access: 

 
Members of the Public will be able to use a web link and standard internet browser. 
This will be displayed on the front of the agenda. Members of the Public should 
attend a meeting via Zoom, unless there are circumstances justifying      attendance 
in person. 

Page 6



3  

If any member of the Public still wishes to attend in person, they must notify 
Member Services at least 3 working days before the meeting. Notifications must 
be sent by email to: 

 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk 

 
Day of meeting Notice given by 

Monday Previous Wednesday 

Tuesday Previous Thursday 

Wednesday Previous Friday 

Thursday Monday 

Friday Tuesday 

 

This will ensure that the meeting rooms do not become overcrowded. 
 

(b) Public Participation (speaking): 
 

Public questions will continue in line with the Council’s current arrangements as 
far as is practicable. However, to ensure that the meeting runs smoothly and that 
no member of the public is missed, all those who wish to speak must register by 
4pm on the day before the meeting. They should email their full name to 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk. If they wish to circulate their question in advance, 
that would be helpful. 

 
At public question time, the Chair will ask each registered person to speak at the 
appropriate time. In the normal way, the public should state their full name, the 
agenda item they wish to speak to before they proceed with their question. Unless 
they have registered, a member of the public may not be called to speak, except 
at the discretion of the Chairman. 

 
If a member of the public wishes to ask a question but cannot attend the meeting 
for whatever reason, there is nothing to prevent them from emailing members of 
the Committee with their question, views or concern in advance. However, if they 
do so, it would be helpful if a copy could be sent to Committee@middevon.gov.uk 
as well. 

 
7. Arrangements for any person attending meetings at Phoenix House 

 
Anyone attending a meeting in person must observe the following requirements: 

 
(a) For non-voting members, officers and the Public – are there exceptional 

circumstances to justify attending? If so, please notify in advance and in 
paragraph 6 above. It is essential that the Council knows who is 
attending and how many will be in the room.

Page 7

mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk


4  

(b) Do not attend if you: have any symptoms of Covid-19; are self-isolating 
(with or without a positive Covid-19 test); or are in a period of post-travel 
quarantine. 

 
(c) Use the hand sanitiser which is available in the building. 

 
(d) Follow the directions for entering, moving around and exiting the 

building. Follow the instructions of any Officer present to manage the 
safety of the meeting and/or the Chairman. 

 
(e) Sign into the meeting if requested to do so – you may be asked to leave 

contact details 
 

(f) Enter and leave the building promptly – do not gather inside after the 
meeting has finished, or during any break in the meeting 

 
(g) Bring your own water/refreshments, as these will not be available for the 

time being. 
 

8. Starting the Meeting 
 

At the start of the meeting, the Member Services Officer will check all required 
attendees are present and that there is a quorum. If there is no quorum, the 
meeting will be adjourned. This applies if, during the meeting, it becomes inquorate 
for whatever reason. 

 
The Chair will remind all Members, Officers and the Public attending via Zoom that 
all microphones must be muted, unless and until they are speaking. This 
prevents background noise, coughing etc. which is intrusive and disruptive during 
the meeting. The Hosting Officer will enforce this and will be able to turn off 
participant mics when they are not in use. 

 
9. Declaration of Interests 

 
Members should declare their interests in the usual way. A Member with a 
disclosable pecuniary interest is required to the leave the room. If they are 
attending via Zoom, they will be moved to the waiting room for the duration of the 
item. 

 
10. The Meeting and Debate 

 
(a) For Members and Officers physically present 

Each member should raise their hand to indicate a request to speak. When called, 
they must identify themselves for the recording and for the benefit of those 
attending via Zoom. The microphone must be used when speaking – standing will 
make it difficult for those on Zoom to hear and is discouraged, including at 
meetings of Full Council. 

 
(b) For any person attending via Zoom 

 
The Council will not be using the Chat function. The Chairman will call speakers in 

Page 8



5  

accordance with the usual rules i.e. either at Public Question Time, or for Members 
and Officers, when they raise their Zoom hand to speak. 

 
No decision or outcome will be invalidated by a failure of the Chair to call a member 
to speak – remote management of meetings is intensive and the Hybrid 
arrangements are likely to be more so. It is reasonable to expect that some 
requests will be inadvertently missed from time to time. 

 
When referring to reports or making specific comments, Members and Officers 
should refer to the report and page number whenever possible. This will help all 
present or in attendance to have a clear understanding of what is being discussed. 

 
11. Voting 

 
Voting for meetings in person is normally through a show of hands. The Member 
Services Officer will announce the numerical result of the vote for the benefit of 
those attending via Zoom. 

 
12. Meeting Etiquette Reminder for Zoom attendees 

 

 Mute your microphone – you will still be able to hear what is being said. 

 Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair. 

 Speak clearly and please state your name each time you speak 

 If you’re referring to a specific page, mention the page number. 
 

13. Part 2 Reports and Debate 
 

There are times when council meetings are not open to the public, when 
confidential, or “exempt” issues – as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 – are under consideration. 

 
If there are members of the public and press attending the meeting, then the 
Member Services Officer will, at the appropriate time, remove them to a waiting 
room for the duration of that item. They can then be invited back in when the 
business returns to Part 1. 

 

Please turn off smart speakers such as Amazon Echo (Alexa), Google Home or 
smart music devices. These could inadvertently record phone or video 
conversations, which would not be appropriate during the consideration of 
confidential items. 

14. Interpretation of standing orders 
 

Where the Chairman is required to interpret the Council’s Constitution and 
procedural rules and how they apply to remote attendance, they may take advice 
from the Member Services Officer or Monitoring Officer prior to making a ruling. 
However, the Chair’s decision shall be final. 

 
 
 

15. Disorderly Conduct by Members 
 

Page 9



6  

If a Member behaves in the manner as outlined in the Constitution (persistently 
ignoring or disobeying the ruling of the Chair or behaving irregularly, improperly or 
offensively or deliberately obstructs the business of the meeting), any other 
Member may move 'That the member named be not further heard' which, if 
seconded, must be put to the vote without discussion. 

 
If the same behaviour persists and a Motion is approved 'that the member named 
do leave the meeting', then (if attending via Zoom) they will be removed as a 
participant by the Member Services Officer. 

 
16. Disturbance from Members of the Public 

 
If any member of the public interrupts a meeting the Chairman will warn them 
accordingly. If that person continues to interrupt or disrupt proceedings the 
Chairman may ask the Member Services Officer to remove them as a participant 
from the meeting. 

 
17. Technical issues – meeting management 

 
If the Chairman, the Hosting Officer or the Member Services Officer identifies a 
problem with the systems from the Council’s side, the Chairman should either 
declare a recess while the fault is addressed or, if the fault is minor (e.g. unable to 
bring up a presentation), it may be appropriate to move onto the next item of 
business in order to progress through the agenda. If it is not possible to address 
the fault, the meeting will be adjourned until such time as it can be reconvened. 

 
If the meeting was due to determine an urgent matter and it has not been possible 
to continue because of technical difficulties, the Chief Executive, Leader and 
relevant Cabinet Member, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, shall explore 
such other means of taking the decision as may be permitted by the Council’s 
constitution. 

 
Where any Member, Officer or the Public experience their own technical problems 
during the course of a meeting e.g. through internet connectivity or otherwise, the 
meeting will not be automatically suspended or adjourned. 

 

18. Technical issues – Individual Responsibility (Members and Officers) 
 

Many members, officers and the Public live in places where broadband speeds 
are poor, but technical issues can arise at any time for a number of reasons. The 
following guidelines, if followed, should help reduce disruption. 

 

 Join public Zoom meetings by telephone if there is a problem with the 
internet. Before all meetings, note down or take a photograph of the front 
page of the agenda which has the necessary telephone numbers. Annex 1 
to this protocol contains a brief step-by-step guide to what to expect 

 

 Consider an alternative location from which to join the meeting, but staying 
safe and keeping confidential information secure. For officers, this may 
mean considering whether to come into the office, subject to this being safe 
and practicable (childcare etc.) 

Page 10



7  

 

 Have to hand the telephone number of someone attending the meeting – 
and contact them if necessary to explain the problem in connecting 

 

 Officers should have an ‘understudy’ or deputy briefed and on standby to 
attend and present as needed (and their telephone numbers to hand) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



8  

Annex 1 
 

Phone only access to zoom meetings 
 

(Before you start make sure you know the Meeting ID and the Meeting 
Password) – Both of these are available on the agenda for the meeting 

 
Call the toll free number either on the meeting agenda or on the Outlook 
appointment (this will start with 0800 -------- ) 

 
(Ensure your phone is on ‘speaker’ if you can) 

 

A message will sound saying “Welcome to Zoom, enter your meeting ID followed 
by the hash button” 

 

 Enter Meeting ID followed by # 

 

Wait for next message which will say “If you are a participant, please press hash 
to continue” 

 

 Press # 

Wait for next message which will say “Enter Meeting Password followed by hash” 
 

 Enter 6 digit Meeting Password followed by # 

 
Wait for the following two messages: 

 

“You are currently being held in a waiting room, the Host will release you from 
‘hold’ in a minute” 

 
Wait…… 

 

“You have now entered the meeting” 
 

Important notes for participating in meetings 
 

Press *6 to toggle between ‘mute’ and ‘unmute’ (you should always ensure you 
are muted until you are called upon to speak) 

 

If you wish to speak you can ‘raise your hand’ by pressing *9. Wait for the 
Chairman to call you to speak. The Host will lower your hand after you have 
spoken. Make sure you mute yourself afterwards. 

Page 12



 

Community Policy Development Group – 27 July 2021 1 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP 
held on 27 July 2021 at 2.15 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors   

J Cairney, Mrs C Collis, W Burke, 
L J Cruwys, J M Downes, S Pugh, 
Mrs E J Slade and Mrs M E Squires 
 

Apologies  
Councillor(s) 
 

B Holdman 
 

Also Present  
Councillor(s) D J Knowles, C R Slade and B G J Warren 

 
Also Present  
Officer(s):  Jill May (Director of Business Improvement and 

Operations), Lee Chester (Leisure Manager), Paul Deal 
(Corporate Manager for Finance), Catherine Yandle 
(Operations Manager for Performance, Governance and 
Health & Safety), Clare Robathan (Policy and Research 
Officer), Sarah Lees (Member Services Officer) and Carole 
Oliphant (Member Services Officer) 
 

 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN (THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL IN THE CHAIR) 

(0.00.22)  
 
Cllr Mrs M E Squires was duly elected Chairman for the municipal year. 
 

2 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN (0.06.54)  
 
Cllr Mrs E Slade was duly elected Vice Chairman for the municipal year. 
 

3 START TIME OF MEETINGS (0.10.09)  
 
The start time of meetings was agreed at 2.15pm for the remainder of the municipal 
year. 
 

4 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (0.11.26)  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr B Holdman who was substituted by Cllr J Cairney.  
 

5 HYBRID MEETING PROTOCOL (0.11.36)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, the *Hybrid Meetings Protocol. 
 
Note: *Protocol previously circulated and attached to the minutes. 
 

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT (0.11.47)  

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

Community Policy Development Group – 27 July 2021 2 

 
Members were reminded of the need to make declarations where appropriate. 
 

7 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (0.11.58)  
 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on 23rd March 2021 were approved as a correct 
record and SIGNED by the Chairman. 
 

8 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (0.13.25)  
 
There were no members of the public present. 
 

9 CHAIRMANS ANNOUNCEMENTS (0.13.40)  
 
The Chairman had no announcements to make. 
 

10 PERFORMANCE AND RISK OUTTURN REPORT (0.13.47)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, the *Performance and Risk Outturn report 
from the Operations Manager for Performance, Governance and Health and Safety. 
 
The Officer explained that the report had been to each of the PDG’s and to Cabinet 
on 6th July. 
 
The Chairman asked the Group to reflect on the content of the reports and if 
Members felt they enhanced Policy Development. She advised that moving forward 
the Group would not be presented the Performance and Risk report at each meeting 
and that if Members were interested in the results these would still be reported at 
Council, Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee. 
 
Note: *Report previously circulated and attached to the minutes 
 

11 FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT (0.18.53)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a *report of the Deputy Chief Executive (S151) 
presenting the Revenue and Capital Outturn figures for the financial years 
2020/2021. 
 
The Corporate Manager for Finance explained that the report covered the General 
Fund, HRA Fund and the Capital Program. 
 
He explained that the outturn was a remarkable achievement and the position had 
improved by year end. 
 
The Chairman explained that following an informal session of the programming 
panel, the financial forecast would no longer be brought to the PDG but that the 
Group would be involved in the budget setting process for the Community portfolio as 
normal.  
 
Note: *Report previously circulated and attached to the minutes 
 

12 6 MONTH LEISURE UPDATE (0.21.18)  

Page 14



 

Community Policy Development Group – 27 July 2021 3 

 
The Group received a Leisure Service update from the Leisure Manager by way of a 
presentation. 
 
He highlighted the following: 
 

 The journey through Covid – impact and plans 

 Pre Covid over 900k visits were recorded 

 He praised the diversity of the Leisure team who had been redeployed 
throughout the Council during lockdown restrictions 

 The Leisure team had been involved in the shielding hubs by supporting the 
telephones lines and visits to the vulnerable 

 A PCR testing facility had been set up in conjunction with the MOD 

 A pragmatic approach was now being taken to minimise and rationalise the 
numbers of people in the Leisure Centres 

 A Leisure recovery would review each of the critical phases and this included 
reviewing the staffing structure and introducing enhanced training and 
development for staff 

 A number of staff had been contacted by track and trace and had to self-
isolate. That currently they were able to backfill the gaps with existing staff but 
the situation was being monitored 

 Future deliverables included an improved leisure app and on line offerings and 
booking system 

 
The Chairman thanked the Leisure Staff for how well they had adapted throughout 
the crisis. 
 
In response to questions asked the Leisure Manager responded: 
 

 Current staff parking arrangements at Lords Meadow would be investigated to 
see if improvements could be made 

 Leisure Service had engaged with Property Services and Ground 
Maintenance to ensure the maintenance of the Leisure Centre grounds to 
keep them free of weeds 

 Pace Clocks would be repaired or replaced. 
 

13 MOTION 564 - MOTION 564 (COUNCILLORS: MISS WAINWRIGHT AND MISS J 
NORTON – 24 FEBRUARY 2020) (1.00.47)  
 
The Scrutiny Officer explained to the Group that the motion had also gone to Scrutiny 
where they had been asked to look at the Fawcett review and that a spotlight review 
was being held to investigate the requirements of the motion. 
 
She suggested that the PDG waited until the spotlight review was complete before 
the Community PDG instigated any work on the motion. 
 
Members felt the wording of the motion should be amended so that it required the 
Equality Forum to investigate but with feedback from Members of the PDG. 
 
It was AGREED to defer a decision on a way forward until the Scrutiny spotlight 
review was completed. 
 

Page 15



 

Community Policy Development Group – 27 July 2021 4 

14 WORK PROGRAMMING SESSION (1.05.07)  
 
The Group received an update from the Scrutiny and Policy Development Officer 
which gave an overview of the programming panel and the aim of the work 
programming session. 
 
The Group considered the current *work plan for the Community PDG and suggested 
the following for further consideration: 
 

 Antisocial Behaviour 
 
Note: *Work Plan previously circulated and attached to the minutes. 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 3.31 pm) CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 16



1 
 

COMMUNITY WELLBEING      21st 
SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
STRATEGIC GRANTS REVIEW 
 
Cabinet Member(s):  Cllr Dennis Knowles – Community Well-Being 
       
Responsible Officer: Adrian Welsh, Strategic Manager Growth, Economy and 
Delivery 
 
Reason for report: To agree the process for a review of strategic grant funding for 
the financial year 2022-23.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

1. That the Community PDG nominates members for a working group to look at 
the Council’s funding priorities for the period 2022-23 

2. That the Committee asks Cabinet to set the level of strategic grants funding 
as part of the budget setting process. 

 
Financial Implications: The budget allocated for the combined grants during the 
2021/22 financial year was £138,500. The funding available for 2022-23 will be 
dependent on the Council’s budgetary review this autumn, but is likely to be 
impacted by the need to reduce general fund expenditure by between 8-10% to 
balance the budget. 
 
Legal Implications: In the event that funding priorities change and a proposal 
comes forward which will result in some organisations receiving less or no funding, 
careful consideration should be given to whether such a proposal ought to be subject 
to a consultation before a final decision is made.  
 
Risk Assessment: The purpose of the working group is to provide a more informed 
basis for decision-making and will minimise risks with regard to any potential change 
to the grants.   
 
Equality Impact Assessment: In the event that funding priorities change and a 
proposal comes forward which will result in some organisations receiving less or no 
funding, a full Equality Impact Assessment needs to be done to assess the potential 
impact of such cuts on residents before a final decision is made. 
 
Relationship to Corporate Plan: The allocation of grants provides support to 
external agencies delivering services that advance the Council’s Homes, Community 
and Economy priorities. 
 
Impact on Climate Change: Ensuring that residents are able to get information and 
advice through locally delivered services and are able to access local cultural, leisure 
and green space opportunities reduces travel and related environmental impact. 
 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1  Mid Devon District Council values the role of the community and voluntary 
sector in providing key services to the community, meeting the needs of Mid 
Devon residents, particularly the most vulnerable, and helping to deliver the 
Council’s Corporate Objectives.  

 
1.2 Under the Strategic Grants Programme 2017-2020 the Council offered three-

year funding to five community and voluntary sector partners, whose services 

were seen to be of strategic importance in supporting Mid Devon’s vulnerable 

residents and complementing the Council’s own services. In addition, the 

Council provided funding under its Economic Development budget to the 

Grand Western Canal, Tiverton Museum of Mid Devon Life, and the Tourist 

Information Service, as public / community sector partners who contribute to 

the local economy through their support to the tourism sector. 

1.3 At the Cabinet meeting on the 19th December 2019, it was agreed to 
amalgamate the two budgets into one strategic grants programme, and to 
extend the funding for a year to March 2021 in order to undertake a thorough 
review of the grants programme. 

 
1.4  Due to the pandemic, it was not possible to carry out this review of the grants 

programme. However, a working group was convened to make 
recommendations on the grant programme for 2021-22. The working group 
met three times to discuss and approve recommendations that were agreed at 
Community PDG.  

 
1.5 In February 2021, the Cabinet agreed to extend the grant scheme for a further 

year to March 2022 with the following resolutions:  

 A one year grant award be made for 2021-2022, with a review in the 
autumn of 2021 

 Grants to be made on a 1 year settlement basis, to be reviewed annually 
each autumn 
 

1.6 The level of funding for 2021-2022 was set at: 
 

Organisation 2021-2022 
Grant 

Churches Housing Action Tam (CHAT) £12,500 

Citizens Advice £15,500 

Involve – Voluntary Action in Mid Devon £12,000 

Mid Devon Mobility £22,000 

Grand Western Canal £45,000 

Tiverton Museum of Mid Devon Life £27,500 

Tourist Information Service £4,000 

  

Total Grants £138,500 

 

Page 18



3 
 

This report sets out the framework for a grants review process to take place 
between October and December this year.  
    

 
2.0 Strategic Grants Review 2021 

2.1 The purpose of the Strategic Grants Review is: 
 

 To ensure that the Council’s investment is directed appropriately to meet 
the needs of residents and supports the Council’s own priorities as 
expressed in its Corporate Plan 

 To report back to members on what has been achieved with the previous 
year’s funding 

 To ensure that funding achieves real outcomes for the community and 
value for money for taxpayers. 
 

The review also provides an opportunity for strategic partners to discuss with 
members the emerging needs, challenges and opportunities facing the 
community and the sector. 

 
2.2 In order to facilitate the review process and to allow for a more detailed 

scrutiny by members, it is proposed that the Community PDG sets up a 
working group to receive information and presentations from the Council’s 
strategic partners and to make recommendations on priorities and funding 
level. The report therefore recommends: 

 
That the Community PDG nominates members for a working group to look at 
the Council’s funding priorities for the period 2022-23. 

 
2.3 At the same time, in view of the continuing pressure on local government 

finances, which is likely to require an 8-10% reduction in general fund 
expenditure over the coming year, it seeks clarification from the cabinet on 
funding levels throughout the period 2022-23 and ideally a longer-term 
commitment to provide certainty to the voluntary and community sector 
partners. There is a case to be made that a proportionate reduction would be 
easier to manage if funding certainty were available beyond a single year 
period. Therefore it is recommended that: 
The Committee asks Cabinet to set the level of strategic grants funding as 
part of the budget setting process. 

 
2.2 In order to undertake the review, and give voluntary and community sector 

organisations sufficient notice of intended funding levels for 2022-23, the 
following timetable is proposed. 

 

Step Milestone Date 

 Report to Community PDG 21st Sep 2021 

 Set up Strategic Grants Working Group 
 

Sept 2021 

 Invite written submissions from strategic partners 1st week 
Oct 2021  

Page 19



4 
 

 Evaluation of written submission 1st – 2nd week 
Nov 2021 

 Presentations to Strategic Grants Working Group Nov-Dec 2021 

 Report to Community PDG 25th Jan 2022 

 Decision by Cabinet 1st Feb 2022 

 Funding agreements issued  March 2022 

 
2.3 A more detailed timetable will be produced once the strategic grants working 

group has been nominated. 
 
 
 
Contact for more information:  
John Bodley Scott, Economic Development Team Leader x 4363 
 
Circulation of the report: Cllr Dennis Knowles 

 
List of background papers: 
 

Page 20



 

DCC Consultation Domestic Abuse Support Strategy 1 

COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP         
21 SEPTEMBER 2021         
 
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTATION - STRATEGY FOR DOMESTIC 
ABUSE SUPPORT IN SAFE ACCOMMODATION 
 
Cabinet Member(s): Cllr Dennis Knowles 

Responsible Officer: Simon Newcombe, Corporate Manager for Public Health, 

Regulation and Housing (Chair East & Mid Devon CSP) 

 

Reason for Report and Recommendation: Devon County Council (DCC) have a 

legal duty to finalise and publish this strategy by the end of October 2021. Prior to 

publication they need to formally consult with Tier 2 local authorities in Devon. This 

duty is set out fully within Part 4 of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. 

 

Recommendation: That the PDG notes the draft DCC Strategy for Domestic 

Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation attached in Annex 1 and provides any 

consultation responses it sees fit through the DCC consultation exercise. 

 

Financial Implications: There are no direct financial implications arising as a result 

of this report as this is a strategy for DCC resourcing and implementation. The legal 

framework for the strategy and how relevant legislation may partially impact upon the 

work of our Housing Options team in particular is set out within legal obligations 

below. How DCC will resource the strategy is set out in Section 2 of the report. 

 

Budget and Policy Framework: This strategy has been developed by DCC via the 

Devon Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board. This board have Tier 1 and 2 local 

authority representatives alongside other stakeholders, partner organisations and 

those providing a voice for persons who are victims of domestic abuse. Mid Devon 

District Council are formally represented on the Board at senior officer level by the 

Corporate Manager for Public Health, Regulation and Housing who has responsibility 

for our Community Safety work and is current Chair of the East and Mid Devon 

Community Safety Partnership (CSP). 

 

As a result, the local CSP and its board members alongside the Local Partnership 

Board representatives have a separate opportunity to comment on the proposed 

strategy. Nonetheless, this is an opportunity for members of the PDG and more 

widely across the Council to provide their own comments as part of the DCC 

consultation exercise.  

 

Members should note that the deadline for consultation responses is Friday 24 

September at 5pm. More information is provided on how to respond via an online 

form is set out in Section 3 of the report. 

 

Legal Implications: The new Domestic Abuse Act 2021 places a duty on upper Tier 

1 local authorities in England to provide support to victims of domestic abuse and 

their children in refuges and other safe accommodation. DCC have been provided 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



 

DCC Consultation Domestic Abuse Support Strategy 2 

with significant additional new burdens funding from Government to support the 

delivery of these new duties including its costs in commissioning and delivering new 

services.  

Safe accommodation has a specific definition within this legislation, as summarised 

in Section 5 of the draft Strategy. 

 

The new Act also formally categorises those presenting as homeless due to 

domestic abuse as having a priority need under updated relevant homelessness 

legislation. This has implications for service demand for our Housing Options and 

Homelessness team within Public Health, though how much is difficult to gauge and 

domestic abuse is already a relevant trauma and well-being consideration under our 

current allocations policy and approach. 

 

More information on these duties and how this statutory strategy has been 

developed is also set out within the report. 

 

Risk Assessment: There are no specific risks to the Council through the specific 

objectives of the proposed DCC strategy. Nonetheless, this is an opportunity for 

members to comment upon and therefore shape this key County-wide approach to 

supporting victims and therefore help to tackle this high-profile and high impact area. 

 

Equality Impact Assessment: DCC will produce an EIA as part of its formal 

adoption of the strategy in due course. This EIA may (in part) be informed by 

consultation responses. 

 

Relationship to Corporate Plan: No direct links. Nonetheless, tackling domestic 

abuse is a priority of the CSP and the activities undertaken as part of its action plan 

compliment the ambitions of the Corporate Plan and the DCC strategy. In particular, 

this activity contributes to the priority of Community. 

 

Impact on Climate Change: None directly arising from the report. 

 

1.0 Introduction/Background 

 

1.1 Devon County Council has a new statutory duty under the Domestic Abuse 

Act 2021 to assess the need and create a strategy for domestic abuse support 

in our area for all victims (and their children) who reside in relevant safe 

accommodation, including those who come from outside of the area. 

 

1.2 References to victims (and their children) in the strategy document refer to all 

victims of domestic abuse, including people without children; people who have 

had their children removed; people from marginalised communities and / or 

with protected characteristics (e.g. our LGBT+ communities, our BAME 

communities and our disabled communities). 

 

Page 22



 

DCC Consultation Domestic Abuse Support Strategy 3 

1.3 The strategy has also been written recognising the importance of 

intersectionality when considering needs and responses. For more information 

about protected characteristics and intersectionality please see Appendix 1 of 

the strategy document attached in Annex 1. 

 
1.4 This Needs Assessment and Strategy Framework has been informed by 

quantitative data from Police, District Councils and current domestic abuse 

providers alongside qualitative insights gained from service focus groups and 

the aforementioned multi-agency Devon Domestic Abuse Local Partnership 

Board. 

 
1.5 A strategic framework has been developed based on insights from the 

assessment of needs and this will guide the development of a DCC delivery 

plan. This is however an iterative process and will be updated over time with 

the support of the Partnership Board. 

 
1.6 The strategic framework is set out in Section 2 of the strategy document. 

 
2.0 Strategy Resourcing 

 

2.1 The UK government has allocated £1.4 million to DCC in 2021-22 to deliver 

their duty to provide domestic abuse support in safe accommodation. Funding 

for future years will be allocated within the government spending review due in 

autumn 2021. This strategy will inform the allocation of resources to address 

the outcome areas and priority action. At this stage in the development of the 

delivery plan the DCC does not judge it be appropriate to assign specific 

levels of funding to the outcomes set out in the strategy framework. These will 

be agreed at a later stage with the Partnership Board. 

 

2.2 Also for 2021-22, a small level of ring-fenced capacity funding (<£40k) has 

been provided to MDDC to support our engagement with the Partnership 

Board and our local support offer. Considerations on utilising this one-off 

funding in-year will be informed by the final, adopted strategy though early 

consideration is being given to local activity under Objective 2 of the strategy 

and how we can support Mid Devon victims of domestic abuse to stay in their 

own home. As with the DCC funding, any additional years of funding will be 

determined by the pending government spending review. 

 

3.0 Consultation: how to respond and restrictions 

 

3.1 The DCC consultation on the proposed strategy opened on 28 August 2021 

and closes at 5pm on Friday 24 September 2021. 

 

3.2 An online form to facilitate responses is available at the following link: 

 

 https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=gzehjWjLP0S7S5l_d_1b1_So_wY1fFD

jiFk7a8ToyVUQlRWQzRNNVZQM0hNVU1JOEw0U0tPOFlHRiQlQCN0PWcu  

Page 23



 

DCC Consultation Domestic Abuse Support Strategy 4 

 

 

3.3 It must be noted the scope of this DCC consultation is defined and necessarily 

 limited by the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 and the draft statutory deadline of 

 having an adopted strategy in place by 31 October 2021 (as set out in draft 

 regulations). Therefore, this is not a public consultation exercise and the 

 consultation link provided in 3.2 is only for use  by members of the Devon 

 Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board and the local authorities within the 

 Devon County Council area. 

 

3.4 It is suggested that if members of the PDG (or more widely) are in agreement 

 and have comments they wish to make then these are collated into a single 

 response provided by a nominated member via the consultation link on or 

 before the stated deadline. 

 

4.0 Recommendation 

 

4.1 That the PDG notes the draft DCC Strategy for Domestic Abuse Support in 

Safe  Accommodation attached in Annex 1 and provides any consultation 

responses  it sees fit through the DCC consultation exercise. 

 
 
Contact for more Information: Simon Newcombe, Corporate Manager for Public 
Health, Regulation and Housing snewcombe@middevon.gov.uk.  
 
Circulation of the Report: 

  

Cabinet Member for Community Well Being (Cllr Dennis Knowles) 

Members of the Community Policy Development Group 

All Leadership Team 

All Corporate Management Team 

All Operations Managers 

 
List of Background Papers and weblinks:  
 
Domestic Abuse Act 2021 – the Act is available in full at: 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/17/contents/enacted  

 
A Home Office Domestic Abuse Act 2021 factsheet is available at: 
https://homeofficemedia.blog.gov.uk/2021/04/29/domesticabuseactfactsheet/#:~:text=The%20Do
mestic%20Abuse%20Bill%20passed%20both%20Houses%20of,as%20well%20as%20strengthen%20
measures%20to%20tackle%20perpetrators.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24

mailto:snewcombe@middevon.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/17/contents/enacted
https://homeofficemedia.blog.gov.uk/2021/04/29/domesticabuseactfactsheet/#:~:text=The%20Domestic%20Abuse%20Bill%20passed%20both%20Houses%20of,as%20well%20as%20strengthen%20measures%20to%20tackle%20perpetrators
https://homeofficemedia.blog.gov.uk/2021/04/29/domesticabuseactfactsheet/#:~:text=The%20Domestic%20Abuse%20Bill%20passed%20both%20Houses%20of,as%20well%20as%20strengthen%20measures%20to%20tackle%20perpetrators
https://homeofficemedia.blog.gov.uk/2021/04/29/domesticabuseactfactsheet/#:~:text=The%20Domestic%20Abuse%20Bill%20passed%20both%20Houses%20of,as%20well%20as%20strengthen%20measures%20to%20tackle%20perpetrators


 

DCC Consultation Domestic Abuse Support Strategy 5 

 
 
 
 
Annex 1 
 

Draft Devon County Council Strategy for Domestic Abuse Support in Safe 
Accommodation in Devon 2021 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Strategy for Domestic Abuse Support in Safe 

Accommodation in Devon 2021 

 

Published dd/mm/yyyy in accordance with Part 4 of the Domestic Abuse 

Act 2021 

  

Page 27



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 2 of 22 

1. Introduction 

Devon County Council has a new statutory duty under the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 to assess 

the need and create a strategy for domestic abuse support in our area for all victims (and 

their children) who reside in relevant safe accommodation, including those who come from 

outside of the area. 

References to victims (and their children) in this document refer to all victims of domestic 

abuse, including people without children; people who have had their children removed; people 

from marginalised communities and / or with protected characteristics (eg our LGBT+ 

communities, our BAME communities and our disabled communities).  The strategy has also 

been written recognising the importance of intersectionality when considering needs and 

responses. For more information about protected characteristics and intersectionality please 

see Appendix 1.  

This Needs Assessment and Strategy Framework has been informed by quantitative data from 

Police, District Councils and current domestic abuse providers and qualitative insights gained 

from service focus groups (Appendix 2) and the multi-agency Devon Domestic Abuse Local 

Partnership Board. Due to time constraints no insights have been gained directly from those 

who have experienced domestic abuse, but it must be noted that many people involved in the 

focus groups and Devon Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board have lived experience of 

abuse themselves.  

“At least 80% of our staff and trustees have experienced domestic abuse as adults or 

children” (CEO of a Devon Domestic Abuse Charity). 

 

A strategic framework has been developed based on insights from the assessment of needs 

and this will guide the development of a delivery plan. This is however an iterative process 

and will be updated over time with the support of the Partnership Board.  

 

 
2. Strategic Framework 
 

Outcome 1: Victims (and their children) who are fleeing domestic abuse can access good 
quality safe accommodation that is appropriate to their individual needs. 
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

There is safe accommodation available but 
only for particular groups, primarily women 
with children fleeing from outside the area 
and women with complex needs from North 
Devon.  
 
There is insufficient safe accommodation 
capacity to meet overall demand and 
specific requirements. 
 
Most people are housed in temporary 
accommodation without any support. This 
heightens their risk and increases their 
chance of returning to their abuser. 
 

We need to increase the units of safe 
accommodation available in Devon. 
 
We need equity of access to provision 
across the county. 
 
We need specialist domestic abuse support 
for victims housed in temporary 
accommodation to reduce their risk, 
particularly whilst adequate provision of 
safe accommodation is being developed. 
 
We need a network of self-contained units; 
some in one block with communal space for 
recovery/peer support/multi-agency work 
and others dispersed through the 

Page 28



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 3 of 22 

The safe accommodation available is 
geographically concentrated and there are 
gaps in provision for men, large families, 
those who struggle with communal living 
and those with protected characteristics. 
 

community with outreach support tailored to 
the individual’s needs. This offers the most 
flexibility to meet a variety of needs. 
  
 

 

Outcome 2: Victims experiencing domestic abuse who wish to remain in their home can 
do so safely to prevent them from becoming homeless and/or their risk escalating. 
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

We have created a system where people 
must get worse to get support and it isn’t 
available when they need it to prevent their 
needs escalating. 
 
Most people want to remain in their own 
homes. It is where they work, have their 
support networks such as family and friends 
and where their children go to school. This 
is particularly important for people with 
protected characteristics, carers and those 
with complex needs. 
 

We should focus resources on preventing 
people having to leave their homes and 
preventing their needs escalating from 
where they are right now.  
 
We need to understand what the victim 
wants and a tool to assess the dynamics of 
the relationship.  
 
We need a multi-agency approach that is 
flexible enough to keep the victim safe, 
remove the perpetrator and/or work with the 
couple to stay together safely depending on 
the individuals wants/needs. 
 

 

Outcome 3: Victims get the support they need to leave their relationship 
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

Many people don’t get the support they 
need to leave their relationship. They do not 
ask for help because either they do not 
realise that they are in an abusive 
relationship, do not know how to ask for 
help and/or do not trust services. This is 
particularly true for individuals with learning 
disabilities, those from BAME communities, 
the ‘hidden homeless’ and those with 
complex needs.  
 

We need specialist support for victims with 
protected characteristics and/or complex 
needs provided by the specialist voluntary, 
community and ‘by and for’ organisations 
locally. This must include interpretation 
services for people who are deaf or where 
English isn’t their first language. 

People’s basic needs aren’t met when they 
flee an abusive relationship. 
 

We need practical support (e.g., financial 
abuse support) for people when they flee 
domestic abuse, particularly for those 
people in temporary accommodation or in 
managed moves.  
 

 

 

Page 29



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 4 of 22 

Outcome 4: A range of trauma informed therapeutic support is available to victims (and 
their children) to support recovery and break the cycle.  
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

All victims (including children) of domestic 
abuse have experienced some sort of loss 
– loss of a relationship, loss of a home, loss 
of friends, loss of their community, loss of 
their crutches etc. 
 
If adults and children do not get support to 
work through their feelings in the “here and 
now”, they often revert back to harmful 
relationships or behaviours (e.g., substance 
misuse). 
 
If people do not get support to understand 
the patterns of abuse and the influence of 
their childhoods on their choices, they can 
continue to choose unhealthy relationships 
and behaviours.  
 

We need to ensure trauma informed 
therapeutic support is available at all stages 
of the individual’s (adult and children) 
journey.  
 
The offer needs to be different depending 
on the adult/child’s needs, the makeup of 
the family, their relationship status and 
protected characteristics.  

 

Outcome 5: Victims (and their children) have appropriate support to live safely, free from 
abuse 
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

There is no dedicated long-term support for 
victims and their children after leaving safe 
accommodation. This is particularly 
important for people with protected 
characteristics and those with complex 
needs.  
 

 We need to provide support tailored to the 
individuals needs to help them to seek 
support, remain in safe accommodation and 
remain independent afterwards. The length 
of support needs to be flexible depending 
on the family's needs. 
 
We need to ensure the support offered is 
part of the Early Help process to provide 
on-going multi-agency support to the child 
and family. 

 

Outcome 6: Victims (and their children) receive person centred response that is tailored 
to their own wants and needs.  
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

Our current system often requires people to 

accept unsuitable accommodation, and/or 

alienates them from services or cycles 

through services. 

 

We need to listen to the individual and 
understand the real dynamics of the 
relationship to identify the right solutions 
and tailor support to their personal 
outcomes.  
 

 

Page 30



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 5 of 22 

Outcome 7:  Services are domestic abuse informed and work collectively to support the 
victim and their family.  
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

Individual practitioners and services do not 
have the knowledge or understanding of 
domestic abuse, its impact on individuals 
and families, particularly those with 
protected characteristics to provide an 
appropriate domestic abuse and trauma 
informed response.  
 
Trusted partner relationships are key to 
effective multi-agency working.  
 

We need to raise awareness of domestic 
abuse and impact of trauma, but also 
raising understanding of intersectionality 
and the need for different service 
responses for individual needs and 
protected characteristics, such as LGBT+, 
BAME, physical and learning disability.  
 
We need to develop clear links from 
domestic abuse services into statutory and 
voluntary/community services to enable 
partner relationships to be built. 

 

Outcome 8:  Devon County Council and the Local Partnership Board have access to 
consistent, up-to-date data and the lived experiences of victims (and their children) to 
ensure that the Needs Assessment and Strategy for Devon is continuously developed and 
monitored over time to add further insights, learn from mistakes and to improve outcomes.   
 

Insights  
 

Objectives 

We have an incomplete picture of demand 
for safe accommodation across Devon. 
 
We have valuable insights from 
practitioners and services but lack insights 
from victims and children with lived 
experience.   
 

We need consistent quantitative data from 
the 8 District Councils to determine need for 
safe accommodation.  
 
We will develop an Ethical Framework for 
the involvement of victims and children in 
the Local Partnership Board and the 
delivery of the strategy.  
 

 
3. Resource allocation  

The UK government has allocated £1.4 million to Devon County Council in 2021-22 to 

deliver the Council’s duty to provide domestic abuse support in safe accommodation.  

Funding for future years will be allocated within the government spending review due in 

autumn 2021.  This strategy will inform the allocation of resources to address the outcome 

areas and priority action. At this stage in the development of the delivery plan the Council 

does not judge it be appropriate to assign specific levels of funding to the outcomes above. 

These will be agreed at a later stage with the Partnership Board. 

4. What is Safe Accommodation? 
 

 

“Somewhere to feel safe and start to re-build your life” 

“The location is safe and won’t be disclosed” 

“Parents can start to truly meet the needs of their children and re-build their relationship” 

“A suitable environment where the needs of others do not impact your physical and 

emotional safety”. 

“Somewhere where you aren’t judged” 

 

Page 31



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 6 of 22 

The new duty holds a broad definition of ‘safe accommodation’ where we have a duty to 
provide support in recognition of the diversity of housing in which victims and their children 
may live. It covers the provision of support to victims and their children residing in some/all of 
the following, but does not include temporary accommodation, such as bed & breakfast and 
hotels. 
 

Accommodation Description 

Refuge  Accommodation and intensive support for the residents 

Specialist safe accommodation 

 

Dedicated specialist support to victims with relevant 
protected characteristics and/or complex needs e.g. 
refuges for BAME (Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic), 
LGBT+ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans -transgender, 
transexual), and disabled victims 

Dispersed accommodation 

 

Self-contained accommodation which is safe, secure 
and dedicated to supporting victims of domestic abuse 

Move-on or Second stage 
accommodation 

Projects temporarily accommodating victims, including 
families who no longer need the intensive level of 
support provided in a refuge, but would still benefit from 
a lower level of domestic abuse specific support for a 
period before they move to fully independent and 
permanent accommodation 

Sanctuary Schemes Properties with local authority installed Sanctuary 
Schemes or other similar schemes which provide 
enhanced physical security measures within a home 

Other accommodation 

designated as Domestic Abuse 

emergency accommodation  

A safe place with support that provides safe, self-
contained accommodation for victims to spend a 
temporary period of time. Must be provided by LHAs, 
social housing providers or registered charity 

 
However, ‘safe accommodation’ is only considered safe if it is delivered with support. This can 
be directly provided within safe accommodation services and as outreach support to victims 
in other types of relevant accommodation, including their homes in the case of a sanctuary 
scheme. The government is clear that that the introduction of this duty should not result in any 
negative impact on non-accommodation based local domestic abuse services. It is expected 
that support in safe accommodation should sit alongside and complement the support that is 
already available to victims.  
 
Accommodation based domestic abuse support includes: 
 

Type of Support Examples 

Advocacy Support Development of personal safety plans, liaison with other 
services (for example, GPs and social workers, welfare 
benefit providers) 

General advice Financial & legal support, Benefits, Support into work 

Housing related advice and 
support 

Securing a permanent home and advice on how to live 
safely and independently 

Domestic abuse prevention 
advice 

Support to assist victims to recognise the signs of 
abusive relationships, to help them remain safe 
(including online) and to prevent re-victimisation 

Specialist support for victims 
with relevant protected 
characteristics and / or 
complex needs 

Interpreters, faith services, mental health advice and 
support, drug and alcohol advice and support, and 
immigration advice 

Page 32



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 7 of 22 

Children’s Support Play therapy and child advocacy 

Counselling and therapy for 
both adults and children. 
 

 

 

5. What is the demand in Devon for safe accommodation?  

Demand for housing, as a result of domestic abuse, continues to increase across Devon.1 
When comparing the 12 months to March 2020 to the following year, demand has increased 
across the region by 26% from 232 to 449.2 All regions have seen an overall rise in the past 
three years. 

 
Crucially, the data provided from the local districts include the number of people in need of 
housing as a direct result of domestic abuse. Meaning their primary concern was listed as 
domestic abuse.  What the data is unable to indicate is the additional number of people who 
were experiencing domestic abuse but did not list this as their primary reason for becoming 
homeless. For these applicants, although they may have been experiencing domestic abuse 
at the time, their primary reason for seeking accommodation may have been listed as rent 
arrears or an eviction notice. This is particularly relevant for individuals with complex needs. 
As a result, it is difficult to ascertain from current recorded data how many more people who 
presented as homeless were also experiencing domestic abuse.  
 
Overall demand across Devon between 2018 and 2021 
From the local authority data collected across Devon 

• The majority of applicants (76%) were female, 23% were male 

• Over 93% of all applications recorded their ethnicity as white British 

• 44% were single adults with dependent child(ren) and just over half were adult(s) with no 
children 

• 33% were economically inactive/ long or short term ill, 23% were unemployed and 21% 
were employed 

• 58% stated that a member of the household had a confirmed medical condition 

• Almost a third of applications reported that a household member had a self-reported 
vulnerability including physical or mental health needs 

 
1 Data includes Mid Devon District Council, West Devon District Council, South Hams District Council, 
Torridge District Council, East Devon Council and Teignbridge District Council. Exeter City Council 
provided overall figures for 2020/2021. No data was provided from North Devon District Council. 
2 Excluding Exeter City Council data. 

Mid Devon
District Council

West Devon
District Council

South Hams
District Council

Torridge District
Council

East Devon
Council

Teignbridge
District Council

Demand for housing as a direct result of Domestic abuse

2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021

Page 33



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 8 of 22 

 
 
Demand for accommodation slightly varies across Devon, with the largest demand in Exeter 
Mid Devon and Teignbridge. 
 
The age of people presenting as homeless as a result of domestic abuse varies across Devon. 
Some districts recorded the age of the lead applicant only, while other areas included the age 
of everyone living in the household. As a result, it is not possible to compare areas.  
 
Under the Domestic Abuse Act 2021, Local Authorities with a housing duty must consider 
people made homeless through domestic abuse as having a priority need for accommodation. 
Prior to this, victims of domestic abuse were assessed to see whether they were considered 
vulnerable. Only those considered vulnerable were seen as having a priority need. In principle 
the new legislation could greatly increase the number of people with a priority need for 
accommodation as a result of domestic abuse. For example, on average Exeter receives 
about 15 homelessness presentations a month that led to a MARAC referral. But only about 
2 of those involved a homelessness duty, whereas under the Domestic Abuse act all could be 
eligible.   
 
Case Study: The number of applicants with a relief duty owed due to Domestic Abuse  
Between April 2020 and March 2021 Exeter City Council recorded 74 households who were 
owed a relief duty3 due to domestic abuse. Of the 74 households, 218 additional support needs 
were identified. 60% of all applicants were recorded as having three or more additional support 
needs.   
 
Exeter City council had an equal distribution of single adult females (35%) and single adult 
males (35%). However, when the household structure involved children, all but one applicant 
was a female parent with dependent children. Adults with dependent children accounted for 
26% of all applicants. The majority of applicants were adults with no dependents (74%). 
  

Applicants with a relief duty owed due to Domestic Abuse with additional support needs -
Exeter City Council  

 
History of mental health problems – 61% 

Physical ill health and disability – 32% 

 
3 Meaning the applicant did not have an alternative housing arrangement available such as staying 

with friends or family 

26%

20%

17%

16%

11%

10%

Overal Demand across the Devon Districts

Mid Devon District Council

Teignbridge District Council

Torridge District Council

East Devon Council

South Hams District Council

West Devon District Council

Page 34



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 9 of 22 

Offending history – 30% 
History of repeat homelessness – 27% 

At risk of / has experienced sexual abuse / exploitation – 26% 
At risk of / has experienced abuse (non-domestic abuse) – 24% 

History of rough sleeping – 19% 
Drug dependency needs – 19% 

Alcohol dependency needs – 16 % 

 
Based on households with a relief duty owed due to domestic abuse in Exeter, more than half 
of all applications listed a history of mental ill health problems with just under a third of all 
applicants listing physical ill health and disability, offending history and a history of repeat 
homelessness as a support need. The complexity of support needs indicates that many of the 
households in need of accommodation as a result of domestic abuse have a range of 
additional needs. These needs should be considered when seeking suitable accommodation 
for families affected by domestic abuse. 
 
N.B This data is limited to applicants who were defined as being in priority need4  and eligible 
for an accommodation offer. As a result, these applicants were more likely to have complex 
needs. Data collected did not include victims of domestic abuse who were not considered in 
priority need.  
 
6. What safe accommodation is currently available? 

 

Devon County Council commissions a Devon wide domestic abuse support service that 

provides support to victims in the community. The council has not directly funded support in 

safe accommodation for six years and the current commissioned service does not include this 

explicitly. There are 41 bed spaces of safe accommodation in Devon (Table 1) and all are a 

result of local housing or domestic abuse organisations establishing and maintaining the 

provision independently. This is low in comparison to other local authorities (Table 2).  

 

Table 1: Safe Accommodation Available in Devon 

Scheme Targeted Group Accommodation 

North Devon 

Refuge 

Women over 18 

years old with 

children fleeing DVA 

27 bed spaces 

A purpose-built 8-bed property.  

Plus 2-bed self-contained property 

Women’s First 

Partnership 

Single women over 

18 years old with 

multiple complex 

needs  

10 bed spaces 

1x4-bed for high needs 

1x4-bed for low/medium needs  

2x1-bed exclusively for women experiencing DVA.   

Places of Safety High risk victims with 

children 

4 bed spaces 

2x2-bed self contained properties 

Sanctuary 

Schemes 

Victims remain 

safely in their own 

homes 

Operating only in North Devon and Torridge 

 

 
4 To be considered ‘in priority need’ a person would need to be pregnant; have dependent children; aged 16-17; 
or if a care leaver aged 18-20; vulnerable as a result of mental illness, disability, risk of domestic abuse or time 
spent time spent in care, prison or the armed forces. 

Page 35



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 10 of 22 

Table 2: Bed Spaces in other Local Authorities 

Local Authority Population (2019) Bed Spaces Population per bed 

space 

Devon 802,375 41 19,570 

Cornwall 569,578 53 10,746 

Plymouth 262,100 27 9,707 

Torbay 136,264 29 4,698 

Kent 1,581,600 107 14,781 

 

6.1 North Devon Refuge 

 

North Devon Against Domestic Abuse (NDADA) has run a refuge for women over 18 years 

old and their children fleeing domestic abuse since 1975.  

 

The refuge is a purpose-built property in North Devon. There are eight rooms and can offer 

25 bed spaces in total. There is one room on the ground floor that has been adapted to 

accommodate wheelchair users. Residents have their own room that they share with their 

children and the rest of the living is communal (bathrooms, kitchen, dining room, TV room 

area, and laundry facilities). There is access to a playroom and an outside space for families 

to use. The refuge is staffed during office hours 9am-5pm Monday–Thursday and 9am-

4.30pm on Fridays. Outside of these hours it is covered by an on-call service for crisis or 

emergency support. 

 

The women in the refuge are offered:  

• practical support such as accessing housing, support with benefits advice, locating legal 

services  

• emotional support and counselling 

• group work for the mother and children to re-build their relationship  

• individual and group therapeutic work for the children  

 

Over the period 1st April 2020-31st March 2021, the refuge received 126 referrals. The majority 

(77%) were from outside Devon County Council geographical boundaries. Of these referrals, 

22 women and 31 children were accepted into the refuge. Half of the women were aged 

between 25-34 years and the majority of women had children (83%). Of these 81% of the 

children were under 11 and 40% of women had three children. The average length of stay in 

the refuge was 120 days. Only one of the women was from Devon and only one other re-

located to Devon after her stay.  

 

83% of referrals were declined (104) and of these: 

• 100% had complex needs  

• 87% had complex mental health needs 

• 59% had a history of drug and alcohol use 

• 30% felt communal living would be unsuitable for their children 

• 24% would have been unsafe due to their local connections 

Page 36



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 11 of 22 

• 12% wished to continue a new relationship whilst in refuge 

• 10% had offending history linked to violence and/or arson 

• 8% had a history of assaulting professionals 

 

NDADA estimate that at least 12 referrals (six of which were Devon based with children) could 

have been accepted into the communal refuge if there had been 24-hour cover with strong 

links to safeguarding teams. 

6.2 Specialist Safe Accommodation 

 

Devon has specialist safe accommodation in North Devon for women with complex needs 

(housing, mental health, substance misuse and domestic and sexual abuse) and one soon to 

be established in Exeter. 

 

• The Women’s First Project  

 

The “Women First” project is a partnership between Encompass Southwest (ESW), North 

Devon Against Domestic Abuse (NDADA) and MIND to support women who have experienced 

domestic and sexual violence and are rough sleeping, sofa surfing or living in temporary 

accommodation. This includes women discharged from hospital and prison with no address.  

 

The project was set up in December 2019 and delivers 

• 2 x 4-bed female only accommodation and 3 x1-bed accommodation exclusively for 
women experiencing domestic abuse.   

• A multi-disciplinary team that works with women individuals and through a co-located 

drop-in. This includes access to a trained MIND adviser, Domestic Violence IDVA, drug 

& alcohol adviser and housing support.   

• One to one and group pattern changing courses.  

• A women peer network to encourage engagement and support move into independence. 

 

The project supported 87 women with a connection to North Devon and Torridge between 1st 

April 2020-31st March 2021. Of these,  

• 60% were assessed as high risk of domestic abuse 

• 70% were under 35 years old 

• 68% were economically inactive and had no income 

• 98% were white 

• 14% had children 

 

The average length of stay is approximately 13 months because very few of the women are 

ready to move on successfully before this time. 

• Breathing Space Project 
 
Co-Lab in partnership with Exeter City Council, Julian House and Key Change was successful 
in securing funding from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) for safe accommodation for homeless women at risk of domestic abuse and other 
forms of violence and exploitation. The project will start in October 2021 and the funding is for 
two years. The expectation is Breathing Space will support approximately 45 women over a 
12 month period. The support offer will include: 
 

• Accommodation: 9 respite rooms for women which will be available up to 6 weeks.  
Evidence of placements and local need over the past year suggests that 9 emergency 

Page 37



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 12 of 22 

bedspaces will be sufficient to meet the need in the city.  The Respite Room model consists 
of 5 one bedroomed flats with concierge and four en-suite rooms with a shared kitchen.  
The accommodation will be across two locations in the city.   
 

• Dedicated and flexible support: this will include a Housing Caseworker and two support 
workers.  Real Life Psychology will provide additional psychological interventions delivered 
through weekly clinics. 
 

• Home Vision: Commissioned by OPCC is a 12 week programme of support, reflection and 
future planning.  Delivered in 4 x 3 week blocks, to align with stages of a woman’s journey. 

 
6.3 Dispersed Accommodation 

There are six units of self-contained dispersed accommodation in Devon with confidential 

addresses. One is managed by NDADA and three are managed by Encompass Southwest. 

The clients who stay in this accommodation receive the same planned package of therapeutic 

and practical support as those in the centre-based accommodation.  

There are two additional Places of Safety in Tiverton and Honiton that are managed by Splitz 

support service. These are for victims at high risk who live in Devon and are supported by an 

IDVA. Nine victims have accessed these over the last three years – all but one had children. 

The idea is that these units can meet the needs of survivors for whom communal living might 

not be suitable – including disabled women, LGBT+ survivors, women with larger 

families/older male children, those with mental health and substance use support needs. The 

average length of stay is 123 days, but this has reduced year on year to an average of 84 

days in 2020-21. 

4.4 Sanctuary Schemes 
 
A Sanctuary Scheme is a multi-agency victim centred initiative which aims to enable 
households at risk of violence to remain safely in their own homes by installing a ‘Sanctuary’ 
in the home and through the provision of support to the household5. The victim will remain in 
the home with the children so as not to further isolate the family from their support networks, 
preventing children being disrupted from education and allowing them to maintain their home 
comforts. 
 
Sanctuary Schemes used to operate across Devon. The Crime Prevention Officer employed 
by Devon & Cornwall Police would assess the risk to the accommodation and make 
recommendations to the relevant District Council for physical measures to be made to 
increase safety. There is only one Crime Prevention Officer left in Devon who covers North 
Devon and Torridge. Several of the other districts do respond to requests from MARAC for 
target hardening but this is very rare.  
 
4.5 Housing for Perpetrators 
 
Housing for perpetrators model builds on the Sanctuary Scheme and starts from the premise 
that the best outcome is for the perpetrator to leave the home to maintain continuity for the 
victim and their children. It has been identified that perpetrators are reluctant to leave the 
family home when advised to do so by Children’s Services (for the safety of their family), 
because they do not have anywhere to go. Perpetrators do not have a priority need for 
housing. If a perpetrator does not agree to leave the family home, the family may be forced to 
seek temporary accommodation.  
 

 
5 Sanctuary schemes for households at risk of domestic violence: guide for agencies - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 38

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sanctuary-schemes-for-households-at-risk-of-domestic-violence-guide-for-agencies


DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 13 of 22 

A pilot is being run in South and West Devon where the District Council provides a furnished 
1-bed accommodation for a perpetrator where it is identified that they need to leave the family 
home for a period of time to manage the risks of domestic abuse in the home.  The perpetrator 
must be engaged with the Behaviour Change Independent Domestic Abuse Advisor (BC 
IDVA) from Splitz Support Service and have children that are subject to Children’s Services at 
Child In Need (CIN) or Child Protection (CP) level or above. The victim will be allocated an 
Independent Domestic Abuse Advisor (IDVA) for continued support from Splitz. All children 
over the age of 5 will be offered support from a Children and Young Person’s Safety and 
Resilience Worker (CYP SARW) from Splitz, where their primary carer gives consent. Splitz 
and Children’s Services will work closely together to manage risks and monitor change. Where 
it is deemed not safe for the perpetrator to return to the family home, the District Council can 
assist the perpetrator to find permanent accommodation as appropriate. 
 
7. Insights 

 

7.1 Accommodation 

 

• Most people want to remain in their own homes  

Most people want to remain in their own homes. It is where they work, have their support 

networks such as family and friends and where their children go to school. This is particularly 

the case for victims with physical disabilities whose home may have been specially adapted 

and they know their way around the house and community and for those with learning 

disabilities who may have spent many years learning how to use their own appliances in the 

house or how to take the bus from their home. Also, many carers don’t want to leave the 

person they care for, even if they are the perpetrator because they are worried about who will 

look after them.     

“Unless there is a serious immediate risk to the victim or their children, I will always try to 
support them to stay in their home, with a robust safety plan and support in place. However, 

navigating this with housing, police and social care can sometimes be a challenge. Why 
should victims have to up and leave their home? Move the alleged perpetrator instead!” 

(Splitz Support Service) 
 

“Social Workers have been known to tell a victim they have to leave the area or else their 
children will be taken away. But they don’t want to and end up coming back anyway without 

the support of services and so being more at risk”. 
(Splitz Support Service) 

 
“People with physical disabilities, brain injuries and other additional needs may 
require ‘reasonable adjustments’ to be made to safe accommodation such as  

stairlifts, wheelchair access, bathroom adaptations, assistance walking, support with 
emotional regulation and extreme fatigue.. “ 

(Headway) 
 

But it is also important to remember that “sometimes it is traumatising for the victim to stay in 

the same place where the abuse took place and so it is better for them to move” (Splitz 

Support Service). Therefore, it is so important for support services such as housing, police 

and social care to listen to the victim and their IDVA who will advocate on their behalf.   

 

• The lack of safe, secure and appropriate accommodation in Devon for the length of time 

they need it means people stay in abusive relationships or return to them or cannot 

recover.  

Page 39



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 14 of 22 

“Women will stay in abusive relationships in fear that they don’t have anywhere to go” 

(Splitz Support Service) 

 

“Putting timescales on the length of stay there means the client just focuses on the end, 

rather than their journey and cannot recover” (Encompass Southwest) 

 

There is a lack of safe, secure and appropriate accommodation in Devon. As a result, victims 

are placed in temporary accommodation such as low budget hotels, Bed & Breakfast 

accommodation and hostels.  These can be insecure so perpetrators can get in through 

windows/doors, in close proximity to other perpetrators and those with aggressive and violent 

behaviours and present very challenging conditions to live in, particularly with young children. 

If a victim chooses to leave this type of accommodation because they feel unsafe, they are 

often told that they have made themselves intentionally homeless.  

“I don’t feel I can support her [the victim] to leave because I can’t guarantee where she will 

end up. It might be worse than where she is now and severely detrimental to her and her 

children” (Co-Lab) 

 

“The quality of the accommodation shows people what they are worth…some 

accommodation is in such poor condition that the alternative of staying with an abusive 

partner is better”. (Encompass Southwest) 

 

“They go back to their abusive relationships because there is nowhere to go, they look for 

safety in a man, but we need to provide the safety for them” (SAFE) 

 

• Centre based accommodation cannot meet everyone’s needs 

“Women want their own front door and a space where they can cook, do their laundry and 

shut themselves away” (Splitz Support Service) 

 
“Women we support tell us they want their own front door and not to have to share with other 

people when they move out of our accommodation”. (Encompass Southwest) 
    
Communal accommodation creates a range of difficulties for residents and staff.  
The North Devon refuge struggles to accommodate women with complex needs (mental 
health, substance misuse, history of violence). This is because of the potential impact their 
behaviour can have on other residents and in particular children. “asking them to leave feels 
terrible as they have nowhere to go. But we can’t have children witnessing fighting and bad 
language” (NDADA).  
 
There are benefits of communal living as it can encourage residents to bond and support each 
other’s recovery.  But “we do end up spending a lot of time dealing with falling out between 
residents, rather than meeting their individual needs. It keeps the residents in crisis, rather 
than helping them move into recovery” (Encompass Southwest).  
 
Unless they are in a specialist refuge, communal living can also make women with protected 
characteristics such as LGBT+, BAME, learning disabilities and physical disabilities feel 
excluded and misunderstood.  
 

A young Mum with her two-year-old daughter was placed in a flat with drug addicts 

outside. One day she came home to blood splattered all over the outside wall. It 

retraumatised her.  

 

 

Page 40



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 15 of 22 

“An autistic woman went to a refuge but just couldn’t cope with the communal living. She 
was in sensory overload all the time, was struggling to cope and had melt downs. But the 

staff didn’t understand her needs and thought she was just being difficult”  
(Dimensions for Autism). 

 
Accommodation with communal facilities means that not everyone can be accepted and/or 
needs met. As a result, there is currently no/little provision for 

• Women with large families (over 3 children) and particularly those with older sons  

• Male victims and those with children  

• 16/17 year olds  

• Women outside North Devon with complex needs 
 

7.2 Support insights 

“We need to provide the right support at the right time for the right length of time” (SAFE) 

 

• Many people don’t get the support they need to leave their relationship  

Many victims do not ask for help because either they do not realise that they are in an abusive 

relationship, do not know how to ask for help and/or do not trust services. This is particularly 

true for individuals with learning disabilities, those from BAME communities, the ‘hidden 

homeless’6 and those with complex needs.  

“The silent sufferers. There are those that simply don’t have the words to describe or report 

the abuse, those who are non-verbal, those who may have a learning disability and those 

from backgrounds where it is regarded as normal. Never let us forget, there are those who 

simply can’t articulate their difficulties and may not be able to use the words needed to report 

or to obtain support” (Living Options) 

Housing services and specialist domestic abuse services are often inaccessible to those with 

protected characteristics. This is especially true for those whose English is not their first 

language, are deaf or have a learning disability for services that can only be accessed by 

phone or on-line. 

“There is a lot of hidden domestic abuse within the Deaf community. Many have no one to 

talk to as most support groups just have a phone helpline or if they want to attend in person 

there is no funding for interpreters. The abuser can be the carer or even interpreter they rely 

on””. (Living Options) 

“We make accessing support so difficult for people with learning disabilities. Just think of the 

answer phone message you get when you ring the GP surgery. It’s long and sometimes has 

options to press. This is too much for someone with a learning disability or a brain injury and 

so they just hang up” (Headway). 

“The language barriers are huge. Sometimes people can get by in English but they can’t 

express themselves fully. They need to be able to have a proper conversation, they need an 

interpreter even in that situation. And the victim needs to feel comfortable with the 

interpreter. A friend can’t be relied upon. That is not right in this situation. If we get language 

wrong, we might be sending a woman to her death” (Sunrise Diversity) 

Victims will only disclose to someone who they have built a relationship with and can trust. 

This is often someone who they seek support from on a more regular basis such as 

 
6 This includes people who become homeless but find a temporary solution by staying with family 

members or friends, living in squats or other insecure accommodation. 

Page 41



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 16 of 22 

community or voluntary organisations. It is the person they trust that is best placed to 

educate and support them to understand what abuse is, to help them safety plan and 

prepare to leave if necessary. 

“Black and minority ethnic communities are very tight knit and small in Devon and so 
everyone knows everyone else’s business. In some cultures, they will never have talked 
about their relationship or sex with anyone. So, women tend to seek support from a BME 

specialist organisation because they can attend a women’s group for instance, build a 
relationship with someone and seek their support without drawing attention or raising 

suspicion within the rest of the community” (Sunrise Diversity) 
 

“Many of the women we support have opted to stay in unsafe relationships rather than ask 
for help because they are scared of rejection, judgement or re-traumatisation”. 

(Encompass Southwest) 
 

“The system is very closed system to anyone who doesn’t conform to stereotype of white, 
middle class and capable” (Sunrise Diversity) 

 

 

• Finance is a barrier to leaving  

 
Women with insecure immigration status and have no recourse to public funds cannot access 
benefits. This can be a barrier to accessing safe accommodation which often relies on housing 
benefit to cover the rent. “She was sent away and so she had to go back. The perpetrator 
becomes more abusive because he knows she cannot leave” (Sunrise Diversity) 
 
At the other extreme, having access to capital and income can also be a barrier. An example 
was given of one woman who worked full-time had to give up her job and claim housing 
benefits so she could afford to go to a refuge. If this happens locally, NDADA subsidies the 
rent from reserves so individuals can stay in these situation, but this is not systematic or a 
sustainable solution.  

 

• People’s basic needs aren’t met when they flee an abusive relationship 

 

“We have to make it easier to leave and stay [in safe accommodation], than to go back”  

(NDADA) 

 

 
 

Far too often when victims leave abusive relationships, they struggle to meet their basic needs 

and have no support with this. This is particularly apparent for people who are moved into 

temporary accommodation such as B&Bs or hotels and have nowhere to cook or do laundry. 

Even those in managed moves, need help with the practicalities such as the cost of moving, 

A 19 year old women was placed in a Bed & Breakfast. She had to move out over the 

weekend as they had bookings and was sent to Bath. She had no phone to find 

directions and no money to get there. In the end she stayed in her sister’s university 

room while she was away, otherwise she would have been on the streets. 

A mum and her five children had to live in a Travelodge in two rooms for a year. She has 

no cooking or laundry facilities. One of her children had cystic fibrosis and Mum struggled 

to get his medical needs met because she had moved out of area and so had lost her 

medical support and there was not enough space for her to do his physiotherapy with 

him.  

 

Page 42



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 17 of 22 

storage of belongings and linking in with local services, such as GP, Children’s Centres or 

relevant community organisations.  

 

Once people have moved, some individuals need support in “life skills” such as setting up a 

bank account, budgeting, applying for benefits, paying bills, cooking etc as they have not done 

this before. This is particularly true for people with complex needs, learning disabilities or from 

BAME communities who may need extra practical and enabling support that is tailored to their 

individual needs. For example, someone with learning disabilities may need extra help to 

understand their new home and the layout of the local area. One person may be able to cope 

with a video of how to use the cooker, heating etc, whereas someone else will need to be 

supported to do it multiple times over a period of time before they build up their confidence to 

do it independently.  

 

“We put too much responsibility on families in times of crisis” (SAFE) 
 

“Rebuilding your life is exhausting, we need to make it as easy as we can…” (SAFE) 
 

• Victims need support out of hours 
 
Victims need support beyond 9am-5pm. Victims flee at all hours of the day and night so it is 

important that someone is available to welcomed into their safe accommodation and help them 

to settle in. Also, once in safe accommodation, people need support in the morning and 

evening for a range of reasons.  

• Parents might need parenting support around breakfast and bedtime routines.  

• People who have been traumatised can also struggle to sleep and being alone at night 

and so need extra reassurance.  

• People who are working full-time are unable to receive support if it is only offered during 

office hours.  

• Arguments, prejudice, discrimination and abuse between residents in communal 

accommodation often happens in the evenings when staff are not around. 

• People who have physical or learning disabilities often need support to help with their day 

to day care 

 

• Victims experience great loss and need help to deal with this 

“We need to validate them, to make them believe they have made the best decision to leave” 

(SAFE) 

“All that is on offer is Cognitive Behaviour Therapy. But that doesn’t work for those 

without the cognitive ability to do the tasks”. (Dimensions for Autism) 

All victims of domestic abuse have experienced some sort of loss – loss of a relationship, loss 

of a home, loss of friends, loss of their community, loss of their crutches etc. But there is very 

little support to help people deal with this and associated behaviours, such as anxiety, 

insomnia, melting down. It is particularly difficult to access this support for people who are still 

in abusive relationships or actively using alcohol or drugs. If people do not get support to work 

through their feelings in the “here and now”, they often revert back to harmful relationships or 

behaviours. 

 

“A lot of women with complex needs have divergent or bad behaviour. They get into a 

cycle…they reduce their substances and that makes them remember their loss, so they 

Page 43



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 18 of 22 

revert back to unhelpful behaviours such as drinking or drugs to stop them feeling. You can 

still work with someone under the influence on their feelings, emotions and triggers, you 

don’t have to wait”. (Encompass Southwest) 

 

“Most supported accommodation eviction rates are near 70%, ours is 13% because we are 

present, hold the space with compassion and kindness, let them act out but are there to pick 

up the pieces” (Encompass Southwest) 

 

A high percentage of the women with complex needs have had children removed due to their 

abusive relationship and not being able to keep them safe.  Encompass Southwest have 

started to see an increase in the number of pregnant women accessing their service, 

specifically pregnant homeless women who are in violent or cohesive relationships with other 

rough sleepers. Whilst a woman is pregnant, she receives lots of support for her unborn baby 

from the midwife and social workers. The child is taken away as soon as it is born, and all the 

support is removed. “She needs meaningful support when she is pregnant to help her deal 

with the loss and trauma, so she stops getting repeatedly pregnant to fix her loss. She needs 

empathy, not judgement” (Encompass Southwest).  

• There is no dedicated long-term support for victims after leaving safe accommodation. 

This is particularly important for people with protected characteristics and those with 

complex needs.  

Both North Devon Refuge and the Women’s First Project offer at least six weeks of support 

after the women has left their accommodation. There is some flexibility depending on their 

needs, but it is never enough. There is a lack of awareness of what services are available to 

support people. Services have found the Domestic Violence connector role helpful but there 

needs to be more support from and transition to community services.   

“Women from Black and minority ethnic communities need longer term support, up to two 

years. The risk ebbs and flows depending on the perpetrator, but they need extra help to be 

independent, particularly if there are language barriers and because they have left their 

community, they have no one else to ask for help” (Sunrise Diversity). 

Women also need support to access positive activities and to become part of the community. 

• Support to understand the patterns of abuse and the influence of their childhoods on 

their choices is ad hoc.  

Provision to help victims understand patterns of abuse and how their childhood has influenced 

their choices is ad hoc with no consistency across the county. This long-term therapeutic work 

can only be accessed once the victim is in a safe space. But unless this work is done people 

will continue to choose unhealthy relationships and behaviours and the cycle of abuse will 

continue.  

• Children need support too 

The Domestic Abuse Act acknowledges that children are victims in their own right. They will 

need support to process their emotions and deal with their loss. However, a big part of their 

recovery will depend on their parent’s engagement to support them to feel listened to and 

understood, put appropriate boundaries in place and to start re-building a positive relationship 

with their non-abusing parent.  

“Parents often want support for children, but not themselves. Recovery only works if the non-

abusive parent engages” (SAFE). 

Page 44



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 19 of 22 

• Peer support is very powerful recovery tool 

Peer support groups whilst in accommodation and, also once in the community, for adults and 

children alike can be a powerful tool for recovery. In the North Devon refuge children support 

each other and bring great comfort and you often see the older children helping the younger 

ones.  

 

“Women on the street can be really nasty to each other…it’s all about survival. Group work 

helps the ladies to start look after each other and encourage each other, like stopping each 

other seeing ex-partners and it can actually reduce the conflict in the house”. 

(Encompass Southwest) 

 

7.3 System Insights 

 

• Our binary lens forces more people into the wrong accommodation, and/or alienates 

them from services or cycles through services 

Our system views domestic abuse through the lens of victim or perpetrator and our services 

are structured around this binary view. However, in practice we know that it is more 

complicated than that. There are victims that are perpetrators and perpetrators that are victims 

at different times and situations. Without understanding the dynamics of the relationship, the 

victim or perpetrator can be labelled, and an inappropriate service offer given. Similarly, the 

system does not routinely really listen to the person in question about what they want from the 

relationship and if they want to separate or not so that the system and services can work with 

them, rather than against them.  

 

“A couple had been in a relationship for 15 years. It was abusive, violent and they were 

constantly fighting but they always got back together..they couldn’t live without one another. 

After a particularly nasty argument, the man was evicted immediately. There was no 

opportunity to encourage them to talk and explore what had happened. Of course, she 

followed and then they were both on the streets without support”. (Co-Lab) 

 

 

• We have created a system where people must get worse to get support 

Over the last ten years thresholds for services have increased as resources have got less. 

However, this creates a system where people must get worse to get support and there are not 

the resources available when they need it to prevent their needs escalating. 

• Domestic Abuse is everyone’s business 

There is a general lack of understanding about domestic abuse, trauma is causes and impact 

it can have on someone’s housing options. There is also a more specific lack of understanding 

about how protected characteristics can impact a person’s ability to access help, to leave and 

the additional support required.  

A couple were in a toxic dysfunctional relationship. The female repeatedly presented at 

the housing team as homeless due to domestic abuse and was re-housed. She always 

went back to the relationship. In the end, the council provided two flats which could be 

securely locked next to each other so that when she presented as wanting to flee, she 

could safely go back home and lock her partner out. This worked but the couple did not 

receive any support to manage their relationship safely.  

Page 45



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 20 of 22 

“One housing Association does a google search on all applicants and this can determine if 

someone who is fleeing domestic abuse is accepted or not. It’s completely unethical. The 

information might not even be true”. (Co-Lab) 

Multi-agency partnership working is essential and most successful when this understanding is 

there and a key relationship with a practitioner in a partner agency has been developed. For 

example, North Devon Council has assigned a housing officer to work with all the women in 

the North Devon refuge. This means a trusted working relationship has been built up and the 

housing officer listens to the refuge workers on what the women need for a successful 

transition into the community and tries to accommodate this wherever possible. However, this 

is not mirrored in children’s social care where there is always a different social worker and no 

relationship can be built. This means responses are not always appropriate, timely or 

consistent from a domestic abuse point of view.  

  

Page 46



DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 21 of 22 

Appendix 1: Glossary of terms 
 

Intersectionality - Put simply, intersectionality is the concept that all oppression is linked. 

More explicitly, the Oxford Dictionary defines intersectionality as “the interconnected nature 

of social categorisations such as race, class, and gender, regarded as creating overlapping 

and interdependent systems of discrimination or disadvantage”. Intersectionality is the 

acknowledgement that everyone has their own unique experiences of discrimination and 

oppression and we must consider everything and anything that can marginalise people – 

gender, race, class, sexual orientation, physical ability, etc. First coined by Professor 

Kimberlé Crenshaw back in 1989, intersectionality was added to the Oxford Dictionary in 

2015 with its importance increasingly being recognised in the world of women’s rights. 

Ref: Womankind Worldwide:  Home - Womankind Worldwide  

 

Protected characteristics - It is against the law to discriminate against someone because 

of: 

• age 
• disability 
• gender reassignment 
• marriage and civil partnership 
• pregnancy and maternity 
• race 
• religion or belief 
• sex 
• sexual orientation 

These are called protected characteristics. You are protected under the Equality Act 

2010 from these types of discrimination.  

Ref: Equality and Human Rights Commission: Home Page | Equality and Human Rights Commission 

(equalityhumanrights.com) 

 

 

‘Victims (and their children)’ – in this document refers to all victims of domestic abuse, 

including people without children; people who have had their children removed; people from 

marginalised communities and / or with protected characteristics (eg our LGBT+ 

communities, our BAME communities and our disabled communities)  

  

Page 47

https://www.womankind.org.uk/
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23age&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905367117%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=AyBgrAFH34aZn4PKlWS1NSjfNFq6YKVt%2BkPzHuZOeqw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23disability&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905377063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=IAkRiNDAoter7VI6x6Zyrva8Q36lTHu2G6RjZLEpPMU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23reassignment&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905377063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=KnyPkrQ6iUsVk8tce0ZN6VlnwefU%2FvThNpXGcqJjrgM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23marriage&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905387028%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=N5C%2BUpJHBWPWhH66AbFsf7EkXH7llVCc1Np2BKQDaqE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23pregmat&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905387028%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=LN%2F6Ifq3dACWKp54qOdC%2BGEZ%2B%2BCWT1fGAxbRRe4NPsU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23race&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905387028%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Pdc%2Bj%2FV68XQC3fm7VfF4FFqv25JJOPr87cHe0%2FGm52Q%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23rob&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905396981%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=cK4m%2FfFblHdhorqD3BQka4NSfv7Ah%2Bp5H5%2Fo2BXh73A%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23sex&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905396981%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=8h3VgCcIoCqHKsfvshb6aD63vdvTp9AnZO3LZ2valP8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fprotected-characteristics%23lgb&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905406935%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=zuEDeF4dZkg3ZoJAXxvvGSUZTCjav%2BWzg%2FZXwVI4jS8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fequality-act-2010&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905406935%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=58ORcq%2BY%2Bq9duOFS1oyX1xjDw3MFgrveMJnENCziOZ8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fen%2Fequality-act%2Fequality-act-2010&data=04%7C01%7CSusannah.Hunter%40devon.gov.uk%7Cf097b28b739a41bc3ada08d966d1a75f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C637653872905406935%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=58ORcq%2BY%2Bq9duOFS1oyX1xjDw3MFgrveMJnENCziOZ8%3D&reserved=0


DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  Devon County Council 

  Page 22 of 22 

Appendix 2: List of organisations involved in focus groups 

 

Co-Lab 
Devon and Plymouth Racial Equality Council  
Devon Link Up  
Dimensions for Autism 
Encompass South West 
Headway Devon 
Hikmat 
Intercom (through individual meetings) 
Living Options Devon  
North Devon Against Domestic Abuse (NDADA) 
Splitz Support Service 

Stop Abuse for Everyone (SAFE) 
Sunrise Diversity 
The Olive Project 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 
Mid Devon District Council – items for agenda  

 
This form should be completed by Member(s), Officers or members of the public when 

proposing an item for Scrutiny or a PDG. 
 

 

Proposer’s name and title 
 

Cllr Pugh Date  Sept 2021 

 
Proposed issue and brief 

description  
 

 
Response to Anti-Social Behaviour by MDDC: how to ensure the 
Council has a targeted and effective response to anti-social 
behaviour in the District. 
 

 
Background  

 
 
 
 
 

 
(E.g. Why should Scrutiny/PDG look at this issue? Is this a new 
issue or one that is already on the Forward Plan? Is it of concern 
to residents?)  
 
Anti-social behaviour (ASB) is a major issue nationally and 
locally, and it is a key concern for residents. Cllr Pugh has seen a 
high level of anti-social behaviour issues raised to him since his 
election. Anti-social behaviour has also recently (12 August) on 
the front page of the Mid Devon Gazette. This is a prevalent and 
important issue in the District that has a big impact on 
communities, it needs a comprehensive and coherent review and 
response.  
 
The Police have a role to deal with ASB and other policing 
matters, but the Council also has a role to deal with ASB working 
with our residents in ways the Police cannot. There are two ASB 
policies within the Council. One is the MDDC Anti-Social 
Behaviour Policy, approved in January 2021, and the other is the 
Housing Services Anti-Social Behaviour policy – reviewed in 
2015.  
 
 

 
What will the outcome be? 

 
 
 

 

 
(E.g. a recommendation to Cabinet to improve a service; an 
opportunity to lobby on an issue that immediately affects Mid 
Devon residents; an initial discussion on an issue that might then 
lead to further Scrutiny/PDG review) 
 
A Working Group of the Community PDG is proposed, to make 
recommendations on how to ensure a comprehensive and 
effective response to anti-social behaviour in the Council. 
 
A Working Group will look to:  

 Understand the areas of ASB that the Council can deal 
with and review the MDDC response; 

 Understand anti-social behaviour across the District, the 
local context, where it occurs and if there are any key 
areas in the District; 

 Review how the Council and its partners interact to 
develop a cohesive response to antisocial behaviour – how 
we engage with the police and youth offending team; 

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



 Review of the current Policies and a consideration as to 
whether two separate policies are needed; 

 Understand the links to the Community Safety Partnership; 

 Understand the processes for reporting ASB; 

 Explore what other Local Authorities are doing and what 
lessons can be learnt. 

 

 
 

Page 50



COMMUNITY PDG WORKPLAN 2021-2022 - 2021 TO 2022 

 

Meeting Date Agenda Item  Theme Officer Responsible Comments 

21st September 2021 

21.09.21 
 

Strategic Grants Review 

Group to agree to appoint a Grants Working 
Group for the Strategic Grants 2022-2023 to 
make recommendations on the level of funding 
and length of awards 
 

  John Bodley-Scott 
 

 
 

21.09.21 
 

Consultation - DCC Domestic Abuse Support 
Safe Accommodation Strategy 

Group to provide response/opinion on the best 
route to formally consult with districts on the 
DCC Domestic Abuse strategy around 
supported safe accommodation (the new DA Act 
places a requirement to consult all relevant Tier 
2 LA’s). 
 

  Simon Newcombe 
 

 
 

21.09.21 
 

Work Plan 

To receive the current work plan for the 
Community PDG. 
 
Members to agree and discuss additional items 
that they would like added to the work plan. 
 

 

 

 

  Clare Robathan 
 

 
 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10



Meeting Date Agenda Item  Theme Officer Responsible Comments 

16th November 2021 

16.11.21 
 

Recommendations from Community Safety 
Partnership Working Group 

To receive the recommendations from the 
Community Safety Partnership Working Group 
 

  Simon Newcombe 
 

 
 

16.11.21 
 
30.11.21 
 

Customer Care Policy 
To receive the 3 yearly review of the Customer Care 
Policy 
 

  Lisa Lewis 
 
 
 

 
 

16.11.21 
 
30.11.21 
 

Strategic Grants and Service Level Agreement 

To receive a report from Grants Working Group 
on the Strategic Grants and Service Level 
Agreement Programme 2022-2023 and to make  
RECOMMENDATIONS to Cabinet on the level 
of funding and length of awards 

 

  John Bodley-Scott 
 
 
 

 
 

16.11.21 
 
30.11.21 
 

Leisure Pricing Policy 
To receive a report from the Leisure Manager on the 
fees and charges delegated decision to the Cabinet 
Member for Community Well-Being 
 

  Lee Chester 
 
 
 

 
 

16.11.21 
 

Draft Budget 
 

  Andrew Jarrett 
 

 
 

P
age 52



Meeting Date Agenda Item  Theme Officer Responsible Comments 

16.11.21 
 

Work Plan 
To receive the current workplan for the Community 
PDG. 
 
Members to agree and discuss additional items that 
they would like added to the Workplan 
 

 

  Clare Robathan 
 

 
 

25th January 2022 

25.01.22 
 
3.02.22 
 

Single Equalities Policy and Equality Objective 
To receive the annual review of the Single Equalities 
Policy and Equality Objective 
 

  Catherine Yandle 
 
 
 

 
 

25.01.22 
 
3.02.22 
 

Health and Safety Policy 
To receive the annual review of the Health & Safety 
Policy 
 

  Catherine Yandle 
 
 
 

 
 

25.01.22 
 
14.02.22 
 
10.03.22 
 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
To receive the annual update of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers 
 

  Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

25.01.22 
 

Budget 
 

  Andrew Jarrett 
 

 
 

25.01.22 
 

6 month Leisure update 
To receive a verbal update from the Leisure 
Manager 
 

  Lee Chester 
 

 
 

P
age 53



Meeting Date Agenda Item  Theme Officer Responsible Comments 

25.01.22 
 

Work Plan 
To receive the current workplan for the Community 
PDG. 
 
Members to agree and discuss additional items that 
they would like added to the Workplan 
 

 

  Clare Robathan 
 

 
 

22nd March 2022 

22.03.22 
 
5.04.22 
 

Town and Parish Charter 
To receive the 3 yearly review of the Town and 
Parish Charter 
 

  Sally Gabriel 
 

 
 

01.22 
 
02.22 
 

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme & 
Exceptional Hardship Policy 
To receive a review of the The Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme & Exceptional Hardship Policy 
which has been out for public consultation 
 

  Dean Emery 
 

 
 

22.03.22 
 
7.04.22 
 

Safeguarding Childrens and Adults at Risk 
Policy and Procedures 
To receive the annual review of Safeguarding 
Childrens and Adults at Risk Policy and Procedures 
 

  Matthew Page 
 
 
 

 
 

22.03.22 
 
7.04.22 
 

Unauthorised Encampment Policy 
To receive the 3 yearly review of the Unauthorised 
Encampment Policy 
 

  Andrew Busby 
 
 
 

 
 

P
age 54



Meeting Date Agenda Item  Theme Officer Responsible Comments 

22.03.22 
 

Work Plan 
To receive the current workplan for the Community 
PDG. 
 
Members to agree and discuss additional items that 
they would like added to the Workplan 
 

 

  Clare Robathan 
 

 
 

22.03.22 
 

Chairman's Annual Report 
 

  Clare Robathan 
 

 
 

Items for further discussion 

 
 

Anti Social Behaviour 
Community PDG to investigate anti social behaviour 
in the District 
 

  Clare Robathan 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Hybrid Meetings Protocol
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Strategic Grants Review
	8 Consultation - DCC Domestic Abuse Support Safe Accommodation Strategy
	Annex 1 - DCC Strategy for Domestic Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation in Devon 2021

	9 Anti Social Behaviour Proposal for Work Plan
	10 Work Plan

